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Research. Two years later he was promoted to the
post of deputy director and in 1923, on the retirement
of Sir George Beilby, he became director of fuel
research, a post which he held until 1931. Under his
guidance the fuel research organisation undertook
important investigations on the carbonization and
gasification of coal and coke, on the production of oil
from coal by hydrogenation, and on many other fuel
problems. In association with the late Dr. F. 8.
Sinnatt, he organised and developed the Physical and
Chemical Survey. of the National Coal Resources. In
recognition of his work as director of fuel research,
Lander was made a C.B.E. in 1928.

In 1931 Lander returned to academic life as pro-
fessor of mechanical engineering at the Imperial
College of Science and Technology, London, a post
which he held with distinction until 1946. Under his
guidance, based on his broad experience and deep
interest in education, & high standard in the training
of mechanical engineers was achieved. He also played
8 prominent part in the systematic training of
chemical engineers, and was the first chairman of the
Board of Studies in Chemical Engineering in the
University of London. The branch of research in
which he was most keenly interested was that in
relation to problems of heat transfer, on which he
led and inspired teams of investigators for more than
twenty-five years. His notable papers on the subject
included that which he presented to the Institution
of Mechanical Engineers in 1942, and for which he
wg awarded the Hawksley Gold Medal and Premium,

uring the Second World War, Lander’s experience
and ability were invaluable. He played a great part
in the development of gas turbines and jet propulsion,
flame-throwers, and oil burners (F.I.D.O.) for the
dispersion of fog over airfields. His merit in this
kind of work lay not only in the way he guided and
inspired investigators under his immediate control,
but also in the facility with which he co-ordinated
the work of several teams under different leaders and
ensured harmonious co-operation from all in achieving
results rapidly.

Of the many organisations indebted to him for
advice and help, only a few can be mentioned as
examples. He was for many years vice-chairman of
the British National Committee of the World Power
Conference, a member of the Safety in Mines Research
Board, & member of the Mechanical Engineering
Research Board of the Department of Scientific and
Industrial Research, and chairman of several war-
time scientific committees. For two years, 1946-48,
he was president of the Institute of Fuel and was
awarded the Melchett Medal of that Institute in
1945,

On retiring from the professorship of mechanical
engineering at the Imperial College in 1946, he
accepted an invitation to become dean of the Military
College of Science at Shrivenham, with the task of
re-organising the College as the principal establish-
ment for training army officers in the military
applications of science and technology. In this new
sphere of activity, Lander had already achieved
notable success. It was while he was engaged on this
work that Lander died suddenly at Shrivenham on
March 17,

Apart from his professional work, Lander had other
interests, including music ; and he had looked for-
ward to spending more time at his house at Shepper-
ton and with his motor launch on the Thames. Of a
kindly nature, he will be missed by his many friends
and colleagues. A. PARKER
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IN QOctober 1946, Dr. Lgnder became dea.n of the
Military College of S h was re-assembling
after the War at in Wiltshire and was
expanding its prepa.re officer students for
external egre sc1ence and engineering of the
Univerﬁa? London as well as to train officers for
the cal staff of the Army.

Mre organisation necessary to enable the College
t y out these extended functions at the same
time as it was being reconstituted involved an
enormous amount of work in the remoulding of the
faculties, in discussions with the University of
London, in the preparation of syllabuses and in the
recruitment of lecturing staff. The co-ordination of
this work in the College fell upon Dr. Lander, and
his energy and enthusiasm and his connexions with
the University contributed in great degree to the
reconstitution of the College. That within two and a
half years of its re-opening the first technical staff
course passed out and the first degree courses took
Part I of their degrees at London was largely due to
his untiring work:

His wide contacts with the academic world resulted
in the best of advice being available to the College,
and his strong support of a policy of insistence upon
high academic standard has laid sound foundations
for the future.

Apart from his work on the academic side, Dr.
Lander was a keen supporter of the sports and cul-
tural activities of the College. He was a leading
performer in the Musical Club and led the College
orchestra.

But the quality by which he will be most remem-
bered in the College was his kindly wisdom. In an
assembly of soldier students and of academic and
soldier teachers, most problems are viewed from
several points of view and divergent opinions are
strongly held. That varying opinions have been
reconciled and canalized into channels which furthered
the objects of the College has been in no small degree
due to Dr. Lander’s unfailing wisdom. His counsel
both in wider policy and in day-to-day detail was
invaluable, and the Military College of Science will
look back on its first dean, with feelings of gratitude
and deep affection, as one of the main founders of
its modern constitution. W. J. ELDRIDGE

Mr. H. E. Hadley

v HAaDLEY, well known as the author of
entary text-books of physics, died on
, at the age of eighty-two. Mr. Hadley had
rather a retired life. He was appointed head-
aster of a small science school in Kidderminster,
where he combined with physics a lectureship in
chemistry. In those days, physics was considered of
less importance than chemistry; but Mr. Hadley
was always at heart a physicist. In spite of the
almost total lack of physical apparatus, he made
physics the career of three of his early pupils, for in
three successive years his students gained national
scholarships at the Royal College of Science, London,
now the Imperial College of Science and Technology,
a rather unique success for a small school.

Mr. Hadley was a contemporary of Sir Richard
Gregory and H. G. Wells at the same College, and
from his training there and association with C. V.
Boys he acquired a special genius for making his
own physical apparatus. His teaching equipment at
Kidderminster was largely of his own making,
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